Automatic Profiling Buoy APB5 Operating Manual Program version 4.xx, 5- 5.xxb





SAIV A/S Environmental Sensors & Systems

Tel: + 47 56 11 30 66 • Fax: +47 56 11 30 69 • E-mail: info@saivas.com • Web:www.saivas.no Visiting Address: Nygårdsviken 1, 5164 Laksevåg

SAIV-12 Nov2019

Contents

Introduction	4
System overview	5
Power: Solar panels or Power cabinet w/cable	6
Initial setup (on land):	7
Remote control:	9
Operation of APB5 1	1
The APB5 Top System	1
Access via the APB5 intranet(direct access)1	5
Index.htm1	5
Profile configuration and run (Aprun.htm)1	5
Getting the profile data (Dump.htm)1	6
Set buoy (station) name and password (Config.htm)1	8
Status messages and total number of profiles (Status.htm)1	8
FTP settings (Apftp.htm)1	9
Time zone and DNS settings (Apdnp.htm)	1
Speed settings (ApSpe.htm)	2
Radio.htm	3
Retrieval and viewing of profiling data2	4
FTP connection via SD200W:	6
HTTP connection via SD200W2	7
Status and error messages	8
Maintenance and warranty	9
Appendices	1
Optional power output: apopt.htm	1
1A Components of APB5 (excl. The CTD sensor)	2
1B. Test check list before start	2
1C. Test list for simple troubleshooting	3
1D. Block Diagram of APB5 system	4
3. SD200W Direct communication	5
Open APB5 communication in SD200W.	6
SD204/SD208 communication:	7
Winch communication:	7
Winch commands:	8
Events	8
Radio unit communication:	8
Hidden menus:	8

Hidden menu <p> than <l>:</l></p>	
Battery communication <p> than <s>:</s></p>	
Watchdog and power control communication <p> than <d>:</d></p>	
GPS and Weather station(Airmar) <g>:</g>	
Debug:	
Load Default values/Reset:	
LR77-v2 and SIM card	
Physical change of SIM card	
Change APN access point name in the LR77-v2	
Get SMS when APB5 turns online:	
Graphical display of data	
Station.saivas.net/Serialnumber	
IMR welfare meter (Institute of Marine Research, Bergen, Norway)	
Leaflet: quick Start up:	

Introduction

The APB5 is designed for automatic profiling and monitoring of water quality in coastal waters, fjords, lakes and fish farms.

In near-shore application (such as fish farms), the buoy is normally powered from an external cable supply. Further offshore or in remote locations, the buoy is self-contained with power from a combination of solar panels and wind turbines.

Via the control unit the buoy can be remotely programmed to desired profiling frequency and depth. In between profiles, the sensor unit rests above the water inside the buoy, which eliminates befouling on the instruments. The sensor unit requires a wireless RS232 in/out feature and low battery consumption, therefore the CTD Muti-Parameter SD208/SD204W is perfect for this use.

Versions:

4.xx_xxm has lithium batteries with 16.8 volt. 3 power gates for winch, 1 for RDCP 5.xxb_xxm has lithium batteries with 16.8 volt. 2 power gates for winch, 2 for RDCP. 5.xx_xxm has lithium Lifepo4 batteries 14.4 volt. 2 power gates for winch, 2 for RDCP

5.xxbHD_xxm lithium batteries 16.8volt, 2 power gates for winch, 2 for RDCP. Bigger buoy.

m = with number in front is depth. Is not possible to change rope length without changing program. More than 75 meters will need a titanium drum. Winch has a POM(Polyoxymethylene) made drum for rope up to 75 meter

Features:

4

- No Biofouling on Sensors
- No Cable / Connectors
- Real-Time Data on Webpage, accessible on Internet (HTTP)
- Two-Way Communication
- Programmable Speed, Depth & Intermediate Stops
- GPRS & Satellite (INMARSAT/Iridium)
- Profiling Depth: Standard 75m Ext. 150m
- Weather Station (Optional)
- Current Speed/Direction from ADCP (Optional)
- FTP, E-mail, SMS, NTP, (WIFI Optional)
- 32 GByte USB memory-pen storage

System overview

The buoy contains a control unit, CU801B, an Embedded Web Server, a GSM/GPRS/EDGE or satellite (INMARSAT/Iridium) router, a winch, a short range radio for communication with sensor unit, solar cells and battery pack (Fig 1, Appendix 1A).



Fig 1. The APB5 buoy.



Fig 2. A cross section of the APB5 showing the multi-parameter CTD sensor in park position inside the buoy and the winch system



Fig 3. Components of the APB5: 1 = Main electronics (CU801B) and batteries (3 identical cylinders), 2 = Winch, 3 = Remote control, 4 = CTD with optional sensors and protection kit.

Power: Solar panels or Power cabinet w/cable

The APB5 system is powered from solar panels on the buoy body. The APB5 system can also be powered via cable connection from a power cabinet that is either placed on land or in a floating device close by. The cabinet contains 2 chargers.

Initial setup (on land):

- 1) Activate power switch (The Power Switch is set to off when APB5 is transported or stored for long time).
 - The power switch (Fig 4) is located on the inside of the buoy and accessible from below.



Fig. 4. Power switch box inside the buoy.

- Open the switch box with a screwdriver (4 screws)
- Turn on (=1) the black switch
- Fasten the lid back on the box with the 4 screws (not too tight)
- 2) Mount and setup the CTD sensor:

CTD/STD must be the SAIV model SD204(W)/SD208, where (W) stands for Wireless (built in radio unit). The CTD unit has been initialized for buoy deployment from the factory.

The SD204/SD208 must be mounted with a protection kit (Fig 5) before the sensor is installed in the buoy. This is usually done from the factory.

3) SIM card:

APB5 must have an active SIM-card installed in the router and the web address must be configured. This is done by the supplier. If the USER wishes to replace the SIM-card, see Appendix - section "LR77-v2 and SIM card" for router setup and SIM-installation.





Fig.5. The CTD sensor mounted with protection kit for buoy operation.

Installing the CTD: End stop and knot protector.

Connect the SD204/SD208 to the winch rope (usually prepared from factory). A combined end stop and knot protector is used. The recommended knot is a clove hitch with a half hitch to lock it.



Fig 6. A clove hitch is used to fasten the CTD to the winch rope.

Alternative is a FireLine Knot:



4) Test communication between CTD and web server (see page 9). <u>NB! This test requires that the run settings in the operation setup (page 10) is set to [Single run] in the Run Mode, and [ON] in "Test on land" (See Fig 10) and that there is a least 1 m free clearance under the buoy. When pressing [Run] the system will perform a single run. The sensor will always stop for about 20 seconds for climate calibration half a meter below the park position, before proceeding. This test will confirm that there is communication between the CTD and the web server.</u>

The system is now ready for deployment. Secure anchoring is performed by customer. An example is given in Fig 7:



Mooring Example 3 or 4-Point Anchoring System for the APB5 Automatic Profiling Buoy

Fig 7. An example of how to moor the APB5 system. *The Illustration shows chain in the middle of the rope between surface buoy and APB5. The correct will be that the chain is fasten directly on the APB5. Length off chain is 1,5-2 meter.*

Remember to fill out the "Check list before start" (Appendix 1B) before setting the system in full operation.

Remote control:

9

The remote control is usually only used to operate and control the winch when the APB5system is in service (maintenance) mode. For communication between the remote control and the buoy, the address on the remote control has to be same as the CTD serial number. Service mode or Maintance mode can be obtained in 3 ways:

- 1. Wake with Remote Control: When the system is offline: Hold the middle of the remote control button the red light get on. Hold for at least 30-40 seconds until the red turn off and green light turns on. This option is only available between 0900 and 1600 hour. (Fig 8). NB. When using this option the system is only active until the next whole hour, after which it closes down.
- 2. Via WIFI(system online): Set the unit in service mode from the "Aprun.htm" APB5 internal web page (Fig 10).
- 3. Via external server "TOP SYSTEM": Log into <station.saivas.net/"Serialnumber"/apr>, sett system to service and always online. When APB5 check for new setting at 0900 next morning it will read this new settings and change to service mode. Access log can be checked to see if the APB5 have read setting. If depth is also set it will lower the instrument to this depth and remain there until new commands from user.
- 4. Some remotes have an USB cable attached, this can be used to program the remote with a different address if the instrument is changed, or used with a different APB5 unit.



How to call and operate the buoy from remote control when system is offline:

- Press the middle
- The red light will turn
- Hold the button until the red light goes off and the green light
- The system is now online and set in service mode.
- Arrows UP/DOWN can be used to winch the instrument up and down. Toggle arrow buttons to control

Fig 8. The remote control can be used to operate the winch manually in service mode or to "wake up" the buoy if offline (between 9am and 16 pm.. Maximum distance between the buoy and the remote control is 40-60 m.

The Remote Control uses 2 pc. AA 1,5volt alkaline batteries

10

Operation of APB5

The system is accessed and configured via the remote control, the internal APB5 web page or the web page for the APB5 Top System. The choice of these different access ways for operation is partly depending on the available power supply to the system. Under limited power supply, such as when the buoy is supplied by its own solar panels, the APB5 should preferably be offline in 'sleeping' mode in between profiling tasks. When the APB5 is 'sleeping' the system can only be contacted via the remote control within a 50-60 m radius, and only between 9 am and 16 pm 'buoy time' (set under Time zone and DNS settings). Direct remote access via the internet is only possible when the APB5 is 'awake' and online (these periods are optionally selected and depends on the profiling interval settings, see Fig 10). The 'sleeping' mode is thus necessary in order to save power. In case of external cable supplied power, the system can be continuously online, as power is no longer a limitation.

There are two different ways to access the APB5 via the Internet: Either instantly from the user when the system is awake and online (via Aprun.htm), or indirectly when the system 'wakes up', goes online and calls its command center (The "APB5 Top System", a dedicated software package installed on a web server). Thus, when the APB5 is 'awake' it is also online, and the system can be accessed directly via the internet page. When the system is not 'awake' settings can be selected and set in "APB5 Top System". New commands will then first be executed when the APB5 'wakes up' and contacts the APB5 Top System (via GPRS or satellite). See Table 1(page 12) for when the APB5 makes calls to the "APB5 Top System"

The APB5 Top System

APB5 is connected to a web server via the Internet and communicates with the "APB5 Top System" in order to receive operating commands and download recorded data. To access the APB5 Top System on the web server enter:

station.saivas.net/SERIALNUMBER Username: SERIALNUMBER Password: **** (apb5)

For getting the presetting page type /apr = station.saivas.net/SERIALNUMBER/apr When the APB5-system is in "ALWAYS OFF" mode or "WINDOW TIME" – changes in settings can only be done from this page (Fig 9). APB5 will intermittently go online and contact the APB5 Top System (Table 1) for two-way communication. It will also read and install new settings in same request. Setting options in the command page of the"APB5 Top System" (Fig 9) are similar to the APB5's internal webpage "Aprun.htm" (Fig 10, page 14).

🗋 APB5 Run 🛛 🗙 🎦	APB5 Run ×	_
← → C 🗋 station.saivas	.net/130000E8/ 🔂 🗄	
Run Mode:	Auto 💌	^
Depth:	17 meters 💌	
Speed:	3 sec/meter 💌	
Stop every:	No stop 💌	
Time on stop :	1 sec 💌	
Initial Start time :	10 hour 💌 3 min 💌	=
Interval:	2 Hour 💌	
Online start time:	Always On 💌	
Online duration time:	1 hour 💌	
Run commands will be execu	ited when APB5 is connecting	
<u>Access log</u>		~

Fig 9. The Operation configuration page for the APB5 Top System.

Note that for the time being new settings will not be displayed when reopening the APB5 Top System. Only default values. You can always see the current settings in the stored data text files on the FTP server (Fig 18) or the Internet page "dump.htm" (fig 11) when the APB5 is online.

The configuration and run page (Fig 9) consists of the following operation options: Run Mode (options):

Auto:		Continuous profiling according to set intervals.		
Single run:		Performs one profile and then turns off.		
Off:		System is not active. In order to start homepage Aprun.htm		
Service	e:	Used for manual operation via remote control, maintenance, changing		
		batteries in CTD or to change pulleys/rope See section on maintenance.		
Transport:		Used for shipment - Everything is off- Can only be woken by remote control between (9-16 buoy time)		
Depth: Set the		maximum depth of profiling (max 75 or 150 m depending on model).		
Speed: Select The speed speed		between 3 profiling speeds: 3(standard), 6 or 9 seconds per meter. eed is dependent on numbers of sensor variables and how many rements are needed per recording interval. Example: 1 sec intervals and a of 9 s/m yields one measurement per 11 cm.		
<u>Stop every</u> :	Select If one of depth of reaches	stop intervals on the way down (there are no stops on the way up). chooses to stop the instrument every 3 meters on a profiling run of a max of 21 meters, the winch will stop on 3,6,9,12,15 and 18 meters before it s 21 meter and eventually returns to docking position.		

<u>Time on stop</u>: Choose required time duration per stop (in seconds). Selected time will apply to all stops in a given profile.

Initial Start time: Select the desired start time of profiling. [NOW] will start the APB5 immediately when pressing [RUN] if the Aprun.htm is used (if the APB5 Top System is used, the APB5 will start immediately when the APB5 contacts the Top System).If [06 hour] is selected the system will start at 6 am, If [23 hour] is selected it starts at 23 pm etc. If mode= [Auto start] the start time + interval time will begin next run.

Interval: Selected interval time (in minutes) between profiles. It is important not to select a profiling interval that is shorter than the total time of one profile. Total time for one profile can be tested by running a "Single run" and the total time will then be available on the "dump.htm" page (Fig 11). See section on dump.htm (page 15).

Online start at:

Always on:means that the APB5 is always online. As this is power
consuming the option should not be used over long periods of
time, unless there is unlimited access to external power.
APB5 will turn itself "Offline" if battery is below 25,0 V.
If battery increase to 25,5V the APB5 will go "Online" again

Select given online time: (Net= 9-1): eg., 09: the system will go online

eg.. 09: the system will go online at 09 am and be online according to selected "<u>Online duration</u>" (hours). The remote control can also wake system between 9am and 16pm in this mode.

Always off: (Net= Offline)_System is off. Can only be woken by the remote control (between 9am to 16:00) or via the APB5 Top System at 09:00 am if command to wake up has been given in the Top System.

Online duration: allows you select the time the system is online in given online time, eg 1 hour, 3 hours etc

Access log: This will open the log window to show which changes have been executed: When there is no change (Read = 1): 2014/01/20 12:42:24 Europe/Oslo +0100GMT IP:46.66.182.153, Read:1 When there are changes (Set = set is generated by Fig. 9.) 2014/01/24 10:01:20 Europe/Oslo +0100GMT IP:46.66.171.93, Set:0,1,5,3,0,1,24,0,30,17,1

If FTP is active:

13

The APB5 will check the APB5 Top System every day at 0900 for changes or each time data are sent from the APB5-buoy to the FTP server.

Table 1. APB5 calls to the command server (APB5 Top System) depends on the setup configuration of when it is Online, the selected Run mode and the FTP settings:

Online start at	Run mode	FTP	Request Top System
Always off	Profiling	On	Every profile
Always off	Profiling	Off	At 0900
Always off	Off		At 0900
Duration (1-6 hour)	Profiling	On	Every profile
Duration (1-6 hour)	Profiling	Off	When enter duration time
Duration (1-6 hour)	Off		When enter duration time
Online	Profiling	On	Every profile
Online	Profiling	Off	Never
Online	Off		Never

Access via the APB5 intranet(direct access)

Direct access is only possible when user is in WIFI range or Public IP is available. Norway mobile supplier is the only one that can supply public IP form a mobile SIM card. If you not have a Norwegian SIM-card than public IP is most likely not available. If that is the case all documentation in this manual that referring to "Serial-number"/saivas.net should be replaced with 192.168.1.2 and of course you have to be in WIFI range 100 meter and log into APB5 WIFI network (look for APB5 serial number in the WIFI list on your laptop or smartphone).

When the APB5 is 'awake' and online the system can be accessed and configured directly via the internal Internet pages (htm). There are several different pages:

- 1. Profile configuration and run (Aprun.htm)
- 2. Getting the profile data (Dump.htm)
- 3. Set buoy (station) name and password (Config.htm)

In addition there are number of advanced configuration pages:

- 4. Status messages and total number of profiles (Status.htm)
- 5. FTP settings (Apftp.htm)
- 6. Time zone and DNS settings (Apdnp.htm)
- 7. Set profiling speeds (ApSpeed.htm)

Index.htm

When power is turned on, wait 1 minute for the system to connect to the network. Use a computer with internet access and a browser. Type the address to the APB5 in the address field. Example: (SerialNumber).saivas.net or via WIFI 192.168.1.2 The index page for APB5 looks like this:



Profile configuration and run (Aprun.htm)

If public IP is not available this configuration setup page can only be reach by WIFI (IP address: 192.168.1.2) Remember to log on APB5 WIFI network.

If public IP or WIFI:

Go to the configuration setup page. For example (when the buoy name = serial number 14000023) «<u>http://SERIALNUMBER.saivas.net/aprun.htm</u>»

If not than use WIFI(always available when remote control have waken it or service mode is active) address from browser = "192.168.1.2/aprun.htm"

	<u>ک</u>				
APB5 Run	×				
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C (i) 192.168.2	1.2/cgi-bin/CGI_GET?runSet=	☆ :			
APB5 Run settings for bu	oy name: 14000023				
Current Volt/Temp: 16.0/ Online net mode will be d Below 13 Volt or 5% of re The remote controll can a	26.3 Current Date & Time: 2018-04-23 14.10.33 eactivated to always-off mode under 15 Volt or 50% remaing emaing battery the APB5 will not profile. ctivate the system down to 11 volt.	; battery .			
Run Mode:	Service 🔻				
Depth:	0 meter 🔻				
Speed:	3 sec/meter ▼				
Stop every :	No stop 🔻				
Time on stop :	1 sec 🔻				
Initial Start time :	Now V 0 min V				
Interval:	7 min 🔻				
Online start at:	Always Off ▼				
Online duration:	1 hour 🔻				
Test on land:	Off ▼				
Run commands will be executed immediately					
DATA: Profiling data.					
Date Time: Date and time	options				
Additional settings: Statio	n name and password setting				
Auto: Run APB5 accordin SingleRun: Run APB5 on	ng to interval. Iy 1 time.				
Service: Is set and [RUN] The instrument will go to Remote control can now b	is pressed, set depth in meters and stop there. se used to winch up and down.				
Test on land: If "ON" and Then APB5 will run as the This is used for testing on	l [RUN] is pressed, e normal outside water. land, Only!!.				

Fig 10. Screenshot of the profile configuration page using WIFI access.

The command options on the internal web page "Aprun.htm" are the same as in the APB5 Top System above (page 10). The only difference is the "Test on land" option:

<u>Test on land</u>: If the system is to be tested while the buoy is on land this option should be set to [ON] (be careful not to set the max depth deeper than the free range under the buoy, so that it doesn't hit the ground!). Normally while doing a profile the system would be under water and radio transmission would not be applicable. If this option is set to [OFF] while testing on land, the system will stop profiling and give an error message. See section on status and error messages (page 15).

Getting the profile data (Dump.htm)

16

The collected profile data is stored on the page: http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/dump.htm or by WIFI 192.168.1.2/dump

Text proceeded by a "#" gives multiple information about the system.

Line 1: Name of buoy, this can be changed on the website *config.htm* (page 16)/ And selected Net (network)

Line 2: Depth and running Mode, this can be changed on the website *aprun.htm* (Fig 10)

Line 3: This shows time interval, start time, finish time and time until next profile.

Line 4: Shows the battery count in the instrument and battery and the temperature of control unit (CU801B) before and after profiling.

Line 5: Shows how much movement/tilt the buoy has, as well as the optional GPS Pos and Weather data

Profile data is given in a continuous stream underneath the information lines (Fig 11 using public IP and DYNDNS linked name).

		X
130000e8.saivas.net/dump.l ×		
← → C 🗋 130000e8.saivas.net/dump.htm	ŝ	≡
#130000E8, Net: Online		
#Depth: 3 meters, Mode:Continuously		
#Time-Int: 60 min, Start:15.55.59, Finish:16.02.04, Next:2013-01	1-29, 16.56	5.00
#Bat-Count-CTD: 25, Bat-Temp-Winch: V27.8-T+13.3-V27.6-	T+14.2	
#Max X tilt: 3, Max Y tilt: 2, GPS: N6023.6365 E00516.2420		
Date 99-12-14 Time 05-32-50 GMT Interval: 5sec		
STDOXOFOT Ser No 1002 AP0976.043		
N00001 S00.00 T+08.515 P0000.00 OX100.01 OF000.00 OT	000.21	
N00002 S00.00 T+08.510 P0000.00 OX098.77 OF000.00 OT	000.21	
N00003 S00.00 T+06.340 P0000.09 OX088.03 OF000.42 OT	000.15	
N00004 S29.43 T+04.981 P0000.18 OX095.64 OF000.87 OT	000.02	
N00005 S29.35 T+04.957 P0000.17 OX095.24 OF000.29 OT	000.02	
N00006 S29.39 T+04.938 P0000.17 OX094.48 OF000.37 OT	000.02	
N00007 S29.38 T+04.939 P0000.17 OX092.99 OF000.44 OT	000.02	
N00008 S29.43 T+04.978 P0000.87 OX091.66 OF000.53 OT	000.02	
N00009 S29.55 T+04.930 P0001.75 OX092.25 OF000.32 OT	000.02	
N00010 S29.64 T+04.917 P0002.61 OX092.40 OF002.10 OT	000.02	
N00011 S29.70 1+04.897 P0003.10 OX092.88 OF000.40 OT	000.02	
N00012 529.72 1+04.903 P0003.09 OX092.95 OF000.43 OT	000.02	
N00013 529.68 1+04.900 P0002.79 OX092.65 OF000.52 OT	000.02	
N00014 529.57 1+04.900 P0002.28 OX095.26 OF000.78 OT	000.02	
N00015 529.48 1+04.902 P0001.77 OX092.77 OF000.50 OT	000.01	
N00010 529.42 1+04.901 P0001.20 OX093.04 OP000.55 OT	000.02	
N00017 523.50 1+04.304 P0000.78 CX032.53 CP000.52 C1	000.02	
N00018 529.22 1104.915 P0000.55 CX092.58 CP000.08 C1	000.02	
N00020 S00 00 T+04 927 P0000 00 OX095 23 OF000 00 OT	000.02	
N00021 S00.00 T+04 981 P0000 00 OX095.25 OF000.00 OT	000.01	
End of data	VVV.V1	
dela VT V L VTERVES		

Fig 11. Profile data. The first 5 lines marked with # are metadata for system information Underneath line 5 there is the continuous stream of water quality data from the profile. See manual for SD204/SD208 for more info.

17

Set buoy (station) name and password (Config.htm)

(http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/config.htm) or by WIFI 192.168.1.2/config.htm

In config.htm you can change the name of the buoy and the access password.

$\Theta \Theta \Theta$					Statio	n name		
<	🛛 🚷 http	o://ewos.	saivas.net/conf	ig.htm			¢	Q- Google
⇔ ∭ III	Apple	Yahoo!	Google Maps	YouTube	Wikipedia	Nyheter •	Populære •	
Enter statio	n name							
Station name	e:			Send R	leset			
If you can se	e typed	station na	ame here: <mark>~St</mark> a	ationNam	e=iMem~			
Change pas	sword:							
Type old pa	ssword:							
Type new p	assword	:		Send	Reset			
If you can se	ee typed	password	1 name here: -	password	l=password	iNew∼ Th	en the the p	assword has been changed
DATA: Pro	filing dat	ta.						
APB505 Se	ttings							

Fig. 12. Set Sation/buoy name and change password.

- <u>Buoy name</u>: Type in the name in the text window and click [send]. The name will then be displayed as: «StationName=iMem»
- Password:Can only contain 5 letters and/or numbers and if the password is accepted it
will be displayed as: «password=passwordNew».
Activate password can be done by hidden menu, (see Appendix section
"Hidden menu <P> than <L>")

Status messages and total number of profiles (Status.htm)

(http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/status.htm) or by WIFI 192.168.1.2/status.htm This page gives information about the total number of profiles that the APB5 has completed.

The page will also give status messages about the APB5.

When the system is running the page will show as in Fig 13.



Fig. 13. A screen dump of the Status and messages page

18

When everything is running as normal the status message will display Status: OK When there is a problem the status message will display Status: Error See section on status and error messages for more information (page 23).

FTP settings (Apftp.htm)

(http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/Apftp.htm) or by WIFI 192.168.1.2/apftp.htm

Profiling and system data is by default sent to a FTP-server. The data can be *accessed by* typing <u>FTP://station.saivas.net</u> in a browser or a FTP-client program on your computer. FTP Settings for client program:

FTP-server name: Station.saivas.net FTP-port: 21 FTP- username: SERIALNUMBER FTP-Password: apb5

APB5 FTP	×				
← → C (192.10	58.1.2/cgi-bin/CGI_GET?APFTP=	☆ :			
APB5 FTP settings for	buoy name: 14000023				
FTP Addr-IP :	85.200.249.146				
FTP Username :	14000023				
FTP Password :	****				
FTP Port :	21				
FTP Folder CTD :	/14000023/ctd/				
FTP Folder RDCP :	/14000023/rdcp/				
FTP Off/On:	On 🔻				
USB Stick Yes/No:	No 🔻				
STORE SETTINGS So verify that setting have A test file "FTPtest.txt" If Selecting USB Stick A mount scipt has to be Password to root(routed ctd, rdcp and event.	ettings will be stored immediately and you will be redirected been stored ' will also be sent to CTD folder (yes) there must be present a USB Stick in the network route e added to the start up of the router r) has to be the same as the remote FTP server. Folder "mnt" is	to this page to r. need 3 subfolder			
DATA: Profiling data.					
Date Time: Date time options					
Additional settings: Station name and password setting					
Fig 13. A screen dump	of the FTP setting page.				

FTP Adrr-IP: Use the given IP address of the FTP (File Transport Protocol) server. The APB5 does not check DNS (Domain Name Server).

FTP User name: Enter the FTP username and password is for accessing the FTP Server.

The FTP server need to have CTD & RDCP folders .

FTP On/Off:

Determines whether to send to the FTP server or not. For example:

If Mode "Always Off" is selected and FTP is off. The APB5 will not go online when a profile is done. Data will be stored in internal memory of APB5. Max storage each day is 90 Kbyte. This will give space for 365 days of storage in disk A and 365 days storage in disk B (Total 2 years)

USB Stick Yes/No:

Normally the USB section is done by producer.

USB Section: USB memory –pen must be present on the LR77 v2 network router if option "yes" is selected. Also start up script for mounting USB stick "mount dev/sda1 root/usb" must be added via the LR77 v2 setup page access via <192.168.1.1> or public <serialnumber.saivas.net:81> user: root and password: apb5

Use FTP client program to log into LR77-v2 FTP server. Add <USB> directory in ROOT directory. (beware that updates of router will delete user added directories) The USB stick need to have <ctd,rdcp,event and batt> directories in root

For accessing FTP server on LR77-V2, make sure that you are connected to APB5 WIFI net.

FTP-server name: 192.168.1.1 FTP-port: 21 FTP- username: root FTP-Password: apb5

If FTP is active APB5 will check the APB5 Top System every day at 0900 for changes each time data are sent from the APB5-buoy to the FTP server.

Time zone and DNS settings (Apdnp.htm).

(http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/Apdnp.htm) by WIFI 192.168.1.2/apdnp.htm

APB5 DynDns, Request & N	
← → C 🗋 14000	023.saivas.net/cgi-bin/CGI_GET?APDNP=
APB5 DynDns, Request & 2014-10-14 15.	& NTP setting for buoy name: 14000023 25.24
DynDns Off/On:	On •
APB5 WEB-Addr :	14000023.saivas.net
DynDns Addr-IP :	204.13.248.111
DynDns UserName :	saivas
DynDns Password :	*****
Request Folder :	14000023
Request Addr-IP :	85.200.249.146
Request UserName :	14000023
Request Password :	****
Activate Summer- Winter time:	On •
SummerStart Month:	3 •
Week:	4 •
Day:	6 •
SummerEnd Month:	10 •
Week:	4 🔻
Day:	6 •
Time Sync Off/On:	On V
TimeZone Min:	60
STORE SETTINGS Sett	tings will be stored immediately and you will be redirected to this page to verify that setting have been stored
<u>DATA</u> : Profiling data.	
Date Time: Date time optio	ons
Additional settings: Station	n name and password setting

Fig 14. DynDns and time zone settings.

- 1. This is optional (If dyndns is used the system does not need static public IP)
- 2. Create dyndns account at dyndns.com
- 3. Insert address (that is made) and IP address to dyndns.com
- 4. Insert username and password

Speed settings (ApSpe.htm).

(http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/apspeed.htm) by WIFI 192.168.1.2/apspe.htm

APB5 Speed ×		
← → C 🗋 192.168.1.2/cgi-bin/	/CGI_GET?APSPE=	ta ☆ =
APB5 Speed settings for buoy name: 1	4000023	
Default values for speed are based on 1 If changes done, check speed by doing	5 kg load(in salt water) . a profile	
Init Speed down 9 sec:	64 val 🔻	
Init Speed down 6 sec:	58 val 🔻	
Init Speed down 3 sec:	73 val ▼	
Init Speed Up 9 sec:	85 val 🔻	
Init Speed Up 6 sec:	114 val ▼	
Init Speed Up 3 sec:	146 val 🔻	
STORE SETTINGS Settings will be st	tored immediately and you will be redirected to this page to verify that setting have been stored	
DATA: Profiling data.		
Date Time: Date time options		
Additional settings: Station name and p	bassword setting	

Fig 14b. Init speed settings.

Sett init speed for the 3 speed settings 3-6-9 both up and down.

Time settings for APB5.

It is possible to include summer time and winter time and setting the date for shifting from summer to winter and back again. Check the internet for more information. For example see <u>http://www.timeanddate.com</u>. Normally it is based on a week number and week day. Time zone has to be input as minutes from GMT. Both Summer/winter and Time zone can be enabled or disabled.

Radio.htm

In order to make sure that the instrument (SD204/SD208) is connected to APB5, check the link: *http:// (SERIALNUMBER).saivas.net/radio.htm*



When clicking CTD button the SD204/SD208 serial number is visible.

In order to change serial number, type number after =(XXXX) and press enter.

🕒 Radio Addres	ises ×			- 4	x
← ⇒ C	🗋 130000e8.saiv	as.net /cgi-bin/0	CGI_GET?radioC	=0001 🏠	≡
Click to see c	urent radio addı	ress, change s	ee manual.		
CTD: 0001	CTD				

The SD204/SD208 serial number is also visible on the titanium ring that connects the body and head of the instrument.



Retrieval and viewing of profiling data

The dedicated software "SD200W" can be used for automatic retrieval of the recorded profiling data either by HTTP or FTP. The SD200W needs to be version 3.19.7.181 or later. Click [Help] and [About] to check the current version.

In order to start the data logging, SD200W needs to be configured. This can be done by pressing the [Net] icon on the top menu bar (Fig 15). There are 2 options, [FTP] or [HTTP] retrieval.

- The [FTP] option needs a running FTP server that the APB5 sends profile data to, such as the "APB5 Top System".
- The [HTTP] option is direct collection from the APB5 internal webpage (Dump.htm, Fig 11).

000	🔀 MiniSoft SD200W Test Build					
File ⊻iew D	isplay Util Help					
	O ○ ○ X Communication parameters					
	Serial port [00901 files Modem e-mail Options Calc values					

Fig 15. The [Net] icon on the top menu bar of the SD200W software

NB! In HTTP mode the program SD200W has to run continuously in order to log the data and computers need to have sleep mode turned off when running this procedure.

In FTP mode it is not that important to have the SD200W running since all data is stored on in the FTP server, SD200w will collect 100 days backwards data when turning on.

To set up a new station or 'buoy' folder for storing data press the [Add] button (Fig 16). A new 'station' window will then appear (Fig 17)

📏 MiniSoft SD200W	
<u>Eile View Display Util Help</u>	
Name Type Active Last read Result Next read	Image: Add Image: Add
	11.

Fig 16. Adding a new station or buoy folder to the SD200W software

Edit station		×
Name		🖌 ОК
Station type	801	🗶 Cancel
Folder name		
Filename prefix		
Station URL	station.saivas.net	
Use FTP	Sync max days	
Username		
Password		
Read interval	min Station type	
	Auto interval C Reference O Slave	

Fig 17. The setup dialogue for creating a new station or buoy folder for data storage

Name: Type in name of the station (or buoy).

It is recommended to use the actual name of the station/buoy that data is collected from.

Station type:	Select APB5 from the dropdown combo-box.						
Folder name:	Select/create a folder to save the data.						
Filename prefix	: Select the prefix of the filename.						
Station URL:	Type the web address http:// to APB5 example: «station.saivas.net»						
Use FTP:	Check FTP if this connection is selected (default is HTTP, but requires that						
	the buoy is online, see Operation page 9).						
Username:	Type the username: "SERIALNUMBER" if FTP else "Admin" if HTTP.						
Password:	Type in password: "apb5" if FTP or "12345" if HTTP						
Read interval:	There are two possibilities:						
	a) Select time interval (in minutes),						
	b) Auto (retrieves all data based on last profile).						
Active:	The station has to be active in order for SD200W to retrieve data.						

An example of FTP connection is shown in Fig 18 and 19, and of HTTP connection in Fig 20 an 21:

FTP connection via SD200W:

Edit station		X
Name	14000051	🗸 ОК
Station type	APB5	🗙 Cancel
Folder name	C:\/tpapb5\	
Subfolder name	hustad	
Station URL	station.saivas.net	
Use FTP	Sync max days All	
Username	14000051	
Password	RNNH	
Read interval	min Station type	
	Auto interval C Reference	
	Active	

26

Fig 18. Buoy named "14000051" is set up via FTP (for example the "APB5 Top System")

NiniSoft SD200W	STDOT -	C:\ftpapb5	\hustad	\\201403\140313	04		
<u>File View D</u> isplay <u>U</u> til	Help						
🖻 🗗 🔁 🖸	<u>></u>	I 🖅 😥	<u>55</u>	<u>i</u> .			
Name		Түре	Active	Last read	Result	Next read	
- 14000051		APB5	Yes	2014.03.13 15:54	OK	2014.03.13 15:59	🛟 Add
 14031305.txt							± ; Remove
14031304.txt							
14031302.txt							Edit
14031301.txt							🖌 Read all
14031300.txt 14031211.txt							Alerts
14031210.txt							
14031209.txt 14031208.txt							
»							
+14000023		APB5	Yes	2014.03.13 15:56	OK	2014.03.13 16:06	
						• 14000023	.::

Fig 19. Buoy named "14000051" is indirectly connected via FTP (for example the "APB5 Top System").

The data of each profile is stored as text files (.txt) with name composed of year, month, day (YYMMDD) + a number from 1..99 indicating the number of the specific profile for that day.

By double clicking on any of the text files, each containing one profile, the data from the profile will be shown, as data and a graph. There are many different graphing possibilities (Fig 22), by right clicking one can chose the graph type that is most suitable. See the graph section in the SAIV AS SD204/SD208 manual (chapter 5).

HTTP connection via SD200W

Edit station		
Name	14000023	🖌 ОК
Station type	APB5	🗙 Cancel
Folder name	C:\apb5http\	
Filename prefix	http	
Station URL	14000023.saivas.net	
Use FTP	Sync max days	
Username	Admin	
Password	жжж	
Read interval	min Station type	
	Auto interval C Reference Slave	
	Active	

Fig 20. A buoy named "14000023" is connected directly by HTTP.

MiniSoft SD200W	
Eile Yiew Display Util Help	
Name Type Active Last read Result Next read	
- 14000023 APB5 Yes 2014.10.16 12:46 OK 2014.10.16 12:56	📬 Add
test 20141016 124624.txt	T: Remove
-	🖹 Edit
	🖌 Read all
	Alerts

Fig 21. Profile data from a buoy named "14000023" connected directly by HTTP.

When connected via HTTP (when APB5 is online), then the text file name is slightly different, now composed of 'prefix' + YYYYMMDD + HHMMSS. Txt. By double clicking on the file, you can now see the data as above under FTP connection.



Fig 22. Showing the different graph possibilities in SD200W for viewing the profile data.

Status and error messages

There is sent an Event file for each profile this contains the last 10 errors and events from the APB5. This is the same events that can be reach with direct access via 192.168.1.1/status.htm Event can be find under CTD folder on FTP server and also on the USB memory-pen under event folder.

The page (*http:// (SERIALNUMBER) .saivas.net/Status.htm*) reports on the current status of the APB5 system while online. Some of the status messages can be delayed and will therefore not show as the last message. For example: "winch stuck" will be the first message and then the message "timeout power 003" will be shown.

The first line will always show the profile number: *Profile no: XXX* Then the status: *Status: OK, next run: "TIME and DATE"* This is normal with auto operation.

Status: System Off System is not profiling.

Status: Error, Not able to get in Contact with winch in start position. An error has occurred with the communication to the winch at the start of profiling. Also sent as aFTP file.

Status: Error, Not able to get in Contact with winch, PS! Instrument Running An error has occurred with the winch during profiling.

Status: Error, Not able to start CTD

An error has occurred with the instrument, can also be the radio unit (Tip: check the Radio address or battery). Also sent as a FTP file.

Status: Error, Not able to stop CTD

28

An error has occurred with the instrument, but this problem is probably not related to the address as the instrument was able to start at the beginning of the profile.

Status: Error, No water detected, System Off

This is an error that happens when the winch has been used above water. Example system is on land.

Status: Service Initiated, system off, PS! Instrument is not docked APB5 is in service mode. One can now use the remote control. Instrument is not docked when depth > 0 meter is selected.

Status: Error, Winch is stuck, System Off, PS! Instrument Running.

This is an error message that the winch is stuck. When this message is shown the winch has tried to get unstuck by moving the rope up and down twice. This error message is always seen in conjunction with these two messages:

Status: Error, Timeout power winch err003 Status: Error, Current detected higher than soft current limit err002

Status: Error, Low voltage detect «voltage» next run: «time date» If the voltage is below 23.9 volts at the start of a profile the profile will not start. The profile will be delayed with one interval time.

Status: Error, Power detected under 21 volt err001"

If the voltage is below 21 volts during the profile the winch will stop. But this should not occur since the "Low voltage detect" is monitoring that the voltage is over 23.9 volts before the profile starts.

Status: Error, High temp in controller.

Status: Error, Low temp in controller.

At temperatures above 80 degrees Celsius or below -7 degree Celsius the profile will not start. This is the inside temperature of the electronics so that means that the outside temperature is higher or lower by 10 degrees.

Status: Error, Timeout maximum profiling time. If the profile takes more than 1 hour the profile will end and this error message will show.

Maintenance and warranty

29

The APB5-system should work for 1 year continuously without any need for maintenance or battery replacement in the CTD. However, to achieve this, the following criteria must be observed:

Profiling intervals should not run too frequently and not too deep. The measuring interval of the instrument should not be too short, because this will limit the lifetime of the batteries in the SD204/SD208. With 2 hours interval, profiling depth of 40 meter and 5 seconds time interval, the lifetime of the battery in the SD204/SD208 should last for 12 months.

If there has been a storm, strong winds and/or violent sea the system needs to be checked to ensure that everything is working normal (instrument, anchoring points, ropes and pulleys i.e.) For this type of maintenance inspection, use service mode and the remote control.

After 1 year, anchor points, ropes and pulleys should always be inspected. Batteries should be replaced in the SD204/SD208. For normal use and warranty issue, the buoy needs to be kept clean from algae growth.

Biofouling/algae growth, heavy growth of algae can cause the buoy to sink deeper into the water (under normal waterline). The buoy than needs to be cleaned more often, some area in the world in growth season every 2-3 months.

Antibiofouling paint might be use to prevent this, but only local studies can give correct answer to this algae growth issue.

Warranty:

The APB5 system has (1) one year warranty or 5000 profiles for 75 meter version (selected depth in profiles not relevant for the 5000 profiles) 150 meter version has warranty limit of 3000 profiles.

Appendices

Optional power output: apopt.htm (available from ver. 5.11)

It is possible to use external equipment as a raspberry PI or similar that can use the APB5 internal WIFI and internet connection to send data.

Optional power has a webpage (IP-address/apo) that can activate and test the optional power output. Power on time will be optional from 1 - 10 minutes.

A waterproof box (type Fibox (PC 150/75 HG or PC 150/100 HG)) inner L=163mm x W=113mm x H=70mm/90mm, will be mounted inside the APB5 buoy. Inside will be a power connection that can variate from 11-25 volt (depended on battery). Max power out is limit by the BTS740 chip, that has short protection and overload protection.

Note:



There is also added an NTC resistor of 5 ohm (6.4 Amp) in series with the optional power to prevent drop in system voltage if external equipment can case high start current.

•••									192.168.1	1.2	Ċ		
III Dow	nloadMinisoft sd200w	Yahoo	Nyheter 🗸	Populære 🗸	Apple	iCloud	Facebook	Twitter	Google Maps	Populært 🗸	Nettbutikk HLandsforbund	YouTube	litim 3.
APB5 OI	TION settings for b	ouoy nai	me: 1700	000FA									
Option t	est Off/On:		Off ᅌ										
Enable	Yes/No:		Yes ᅌ										

Enable Yes/No:	
On time in min:	

STORE SETTINGS Settings will be stored immediately and you will be redirected to this page to verify that setting have been stored

About:

Option test: Is status and also a test function. Sett to ON and it will stay on recording to timer value i minutes Enable YES/NO: Must be YES if to run automatic with APB5 time intervall On time in min: Time that power will be on in both test and autorun

3 min 🔷

Optional power output will be turn ON after network is esablish for sending profile data (note power can be 10-30 volt).

If "always off" is active, network will be kept on together with optional power output. On time will keep APB5 router on, so keep ontime as short as possible.

DATA: Profiling data.

Date Time: Date time options

Additional settings: Station name and password setting



Name	Spesifications	Supplier
Rope	4 mm 850 kg pulley	
Winch	15 kg load max	SAIV AS
Batteries 1 & 2(ver 4 and 5.xxb)	16,8 volt DC 105Ah x2 Litium Ion	SAIV AS
Batteries 1 & 2(ver 5.xx	14.4 volt DC 100 Ah x 2 LifePo4	SAIV AS/ Scanbatt
Main Unit (CU801B)	i7186, LR77 v2, PowControl, Radio	SAIV AS
Router box with Antenna	LR77 v2 incl. WiFi antenna	SAIV AS
GSM /GPRS/LTE Antenna	800-2500 Mhz	SAIV AS
Solarpanels	24 Watt *8	SAIV AS
Solarpanels cabel box		SAIV AS
ON/Off & Light (GPS/Airmar) box		SAIV AS
2 pin cable (Battery 1)	Solar cell wiring box	SAIV AS
2 pin cable (Battery 1)	Land power or Optional windmill	SAIV AS
4 pin cable (Battery 1)	Connection between Batterys	SAIV AS
6 pin cable (Battery 1)	Main battery to Main controller	SAIV AS
2 pin cable (Battery 2)	Solar cell wiring box	SAIV AS
4 pin cable (Battery 2)	Connection between Batterys	SAIV AS
12 pins cable (main Controller)	On/Off- Light, GPS/Airmar w. box	SAIV AS
10 pins cable (main Controller)	To router LR77 v2 box	SAIV AS
4 pins cable (main Controller)	Current meter(RDCP)	SAIVAS
6 pins cable (main Controller)	Battery input 16,8 volt.	SAIV AS
8 pin cabel (main Controller)	End Stop and winch	SAIV AS

1A Components of APB5 (excl. The CTD sensor)

1B. Test check list before start.

Check list before start of APB5 on land	Completed
Sim card installed	•
IP address generated by supplier if public ip available or use WIFI direct	
Turn on main power. Wait at least 20 seconds after received SMS or look for wifi	
Go to APB5 web address using a browser (WIFI connect and 192.168.1.2)	
Go to Aprun.htm and manually start a single run for 1 m with "Test on land " ON	
Make sure the winch rope does not twist during the dry land test	
Wait until instrument returns to docking position	
After 30 seconds a dump.htm (data) should be available	
Check if data has been send to FTP server.	
If all above have been checked the APB5 is ready to be placed in water	
Check the depth of the water were the system is placed	
Change max depth on winch if necessary	
"Single run" the system to a depth of 10 meter.	
Check that the instrument has reached the wanted depth	
When everything is ok you can change the system to auto	

1.Web address for APB5 is unavailable	Try the IP number that you received on Accessl (Public IP has to be supplied by your mobile network card supplier only work in NORWAY) If this is OK it might Be a that the DYNDNS registration that is not working. Check your SMS and try the IP number that is send. Or goto the station.saivas.net/"serial nummer"/apr/ click on access log. Check last registrated IP number. Type this IP number in the address field in the browser. If you near by the APB check if there is a WIFI network that has the serial number as the APB5, try to connect and type 192.168.1.2 in the address field of the browser. If no WIFI network, make sure that the APB5 is awake by pressing the remote middle button wait for green
	light. (accessible between 0900-1600)
2.Winch is not working	Check status and error message. Open communication with winch (page 28) and try different commandos. Can also try to wake APB5 with remote control and use up and down buttons to see if it's moving
3. Instrument is not responding.	Check status and error message. Check radio address on radio.htm Check direct communication with the instrument If now respond, try to wake it with Mag-key.
4. Instrument returns to the docking position	Check status and error message.
immediately after starting test on land.	It could be that the without water simulation is OFF.
5. Remote control is not working	It should always give red light, check batteries if not. Check address of the remote if you have several APB5 Connect the Remote to pc via USB cable and use SD200w direct communication to write address to it. In setup there is a options set radio address.

1C. Test list for simple troubleshooting.

1D. Block Diagram of APB5 system.



Unit	Port	IP Address	Netmaske	Gateway
Router/WIFI	NET1	192.168.1.1	255.255.255.0	192.168.1.1
Webserver	NET1	192.168.1.2	255.255.255.0	192.168.1.1

3. SD200W Direct communication

It is possible to have direct communication with all components attached to the APB5: instrument, winch, sonar, radio unit and power unit. It is also possible to disconnect and connect the different components using the direct communication.

In order to communicate directly with the APB5 using the SD200W, use the address and port: 10000 (Fig Appendix 3.1). If WIFI connection use LAN(Local Area Network address: 192.168.1.2)

This can be set up using SD200W Setup and TCP/IP settings in «select port». It is recommended to create a folder for SD200W that is used every time data is being logged, so that one can run 2 independent SD200W-programs on the computer at the same time.

Note that a "SD200TCPdb.DBS" file is created in the folder that contains the SD200W that is logging the data. The file contains information about the system the data is retrieved from. If the program needs to be moved to another PC, this file will needs to be copied and kept together with the SD200w.exe file.

All data will be saved as TXT files. The files can then be imported to SD200W files or viewed directly by right clicking on the current station and selecting the file in question. The graph options will then be as normal in the SD200W program. See SD204/SD208 manual, chapter 5.

Open APB5 communication in SD200W.

Start SD200W by clicking the 'instrument icon' followed by the [Setup] button to open the ,Communications parameters' dialogue:

Image: Second		
S Me Sal. Te Dens F		
MiniSoft SD200W - STDOT - C:\ftpap	b5\hustad\\201403\14031304	
<u>File Vi</u> ew <u>D</u> isplay <u>U</u> til <u>H</u> elp		
	医 恭 盘	\backslash
Communication parameters		Setup
Serial port CU901 files Moder	e-mail Options Calc values	Cownload
Instrument	Auxillary port	<u>0</u> K
Select port: TCP/IP 💌	Select port: Disabled 🗸	<u>L</u> og
Select speed: 9600 💌	Select speed: 9600 -	 <u> 圏</u> <u>P</u> rint
Parity: 🔽	Parity: Even	
DC1/DC3 handshake:	Word length: 8	
Built in radio: 🦵	,	🕌 <u>R</u> eceive
Device address: 0898	Aux format	
	Output: Binary Atlas Krupp 💌	
	UDP output IP-parameters	Save <u>t</u> ext
	GPS input string type: GPGGA 💌	
	Flost Into	
	Enter IP address and port (10.0.0.1	10000) • 14000010.saivas.r
	14000010 saivas net 10000	→ Disabled
J.		
	OK Cancel	

Fig Appendix 3.1. Setup of SD200W Direct communication with APB5.

In the "Communication parameters" dialogue, click on TCP/IP in the scroll-down combo-box «select port». Type the address and the port for APB5 and click OK. Example «http://Station.saivas.net:10000» (WIFI connection = 192.168.1.2:10000) SD200W will open communications with CU801B. Wait until a green light is turned on in front of the address in the right bottom corner of the window.



then this light is green, click any key. APB5 menu is then shown

36

MiniSoft SD200W	
<u>File View Display Util H</u> elp	
Menu APB5:14000023	<u>S</u> etup
<t> Remote control SD204/208. <w> Remote control Winch. <e> 10 last Events.</e></w></t>	Download
<q> Quit.</q>	Log

Use the menu to navigate. NB: If no selections are made APB5 will timeout after 1 minute and close connection.

NB! In order to stop already started communication click <CTRL+T> or <Esc> to return to the start menu.

SD204/SD208 communication:

<T>: Communication with the instrument,

NB! It can take up to 1 minute in order to wake up the radio unit inside SD204/SD208. Dots will indicate the wake up. After the instrument is awake the standard SD204/SD208 menu is shown. See manual for SD204/SD208. <ctrl+T> to end the communication with the instrument (SD204/SD208).

There are many different graphing possibilities; by right clicking the mouse one can chose the graph type that is most suitable. Ref: Graph section in the SD204/SD208 manual (chapter 5).

Winch communication:

<W>: Winch communication: menu for winch controller.

NiniSoft SD200W	_	-		×
<u>Eile View Display Util H</u> elp				
Menu APB5:1700001C	*		<u>S</u> etup	
<t> Remote control SD204/208. <w> Remote control Winch. <e> 10 last Events.</e></w></t>		D	ownlo	ad
<q> Quit.</q>			Log	
Transparent Winch			🔀 <u>P</u> ri	nt
<ctrl+t> To quit transparent mode</ctrl+t>			@ (a	. 1
MENU BLDC v:5.20				
<u>p e.x U0100<ent></ent></u>		S	Reco	iva
<d>own e.x D0100<ent></ent></d>			I Mece	ive
<l>oBatt:21.0</l>				
<r>Uref:5000</r>				
<i>MaxI:4.50</i>			Cours to	**
<u>Speed:080</u>			bave <u>t</u> e	XL
<f>Fall_limit:0017</f>				
<w>Store</w>				
<t>C.Status</t>				
<esc>Reset all</esc>				
	-	▶ 192. ▶ Disa	168.1.: bled	2
	-			

37 37 SAIV A/S Environmental Sensors & Systems Tel: +47 56113066, e-mail: info@saivas.no,, www.saivas.no

Winch co	ommands:
----------	----------

Commands	Explination	Result	
U0000 <enter></enter>	Up	Up number is number of turn/10	
D0000 <enter></enter>	Down	Down number is number of turn/10	
S	Status	Printing status line. 1 time	
L021 <enter></enter>	Low battery warning	Stopping winch if battery (Do not change)	
R0000 <enter></enter>	Voltage calibration	(Do not change)	
I450 <enter></enter>	Max current	Current protect max 900 (Do not change)	
B4400 <enter></enter>	Max depth	Bottom limit	
V000 <enter></enter>	Speed	Number between 004 to 255	
F0017 <enter></enter>	Max fallout	Clima sone depth fallout in start(Do not change)	
W	Save	Store new settings	
Т	Status	Continious printing	
Z	Tilt zero	Make sure that the buoy is in horisontal position	
ESC	Reset	Reset of counter, running and errors	

[S]tatus:

This displays the voltage, power consumption when running, temperature in winch controller, depth at current time, depth remaining, max depth, X-tilt, Y-tilt, speed and error messages.

-	
Hrror	
LIIUI.	

Errxxx	Explination	Results
0	No error	No change
1	Battery voltage under lowest level std: 21 Volt	Stop immediately
2	Over max power, std 1.8 Amp	Stop immediately
4	Cannot move the winch after a certain given time	Stop immediately

Events

It also possible to see last 10 events. (Will tell if battery have been low with current time and data for event or other events)

Radio unit communication:

It is possible to communicate directly with the radio unit. After clicking <T> to open the communication with the instrument, click <Q> to stop the wake up. Then you are able to click <CTRL+R> an then <M> and the radio unit menu will appear. This menu is not for use, only to show that the radio unit works during a troubleshooting process.

Hidden menus:

38

Hidden menu can be reached via fist type <P> than.

<L> Menu for activate and deactivate units.

<S> Battery communication

- <D> Watchdog and power controll
- <G> GPS or Airmar (Weather Station) if active(set via < L>)

Hidden menu<P> than <L>:

Version 4.14 is the version from April 2018. Ver 5.xx has one more RDCP



Battery communication <P> than <S>:

Menu is displayed . <111> Give info about battery 1. <121> Give info about battery 2.

39

Watchdog and power control communication <P> than <D>:

It is possible to open direct contact with the power unit.

First type <P> then <D> and the power unit menu will appear. In this menu you can control the <watchdog> signal and 5 digital ports. This function is not for use, only to show that the power unit works during a troubleshooting process.

If command is send via this communication mode all this command will be returned to original settings once this communication is closed by timeout or <CTRL+T> Power unit commands:

Commands	Description	Occurence	
WDTR	Resets watchdog if it does not get a new	Shows status on Battery	
	message in 90 sec it will reset the web server	voltage, and digital exits.	
D11	Digital exit 1 on	ON	
D10	Digital exit 1 off	OFF	
Dn1 (n=1-5)	1-5 exits on	ON	
Dn0 (n=1-5)	1-5 exits off	OFF	
D60	All exits on	All ON	
D61	All exits off	All OFF	

GPS and Weather station(Airmar) <G>:

MiniSoft SD200W		
<u>File View Display Util Help</u>		
Wait! storing	-	I
Menu APB5:14000023		
<t> Remote control SD204/208.</t>		Download
<pre>(W> Remote control which. (E> 10 last Events. (Q> Quit.</pre>		Log
Menu APB5:14000023		<u> P</u> rint
<pre><t> Remote control SD204/208. <w> Remote control Winch. <e> 10 last Events.</e></w></t></pre>		😂 <u>C</u> all
<q> Quit.</q>		Keceive
Transparent Airmar:		
<ctrl+t> To quit transparent mode</ctrl+t>		Com to t
H= Menu R= Disable All E= Enable RMC G= Ena MDA S= Save		Save <u>l</u> ext
		192.168.1.2
	-	Uisabled
		h.

After activate Airmar weather station direct communication can be done via menu displayed by program.

MiniSoft SD200W	
<u>File View Display Util H</u> elp	
Wait! storing	▲ <u>S</u> etup
Menu APB5:14000023	Download
<t> Remote control SD204/208.</t>	Download
<pre><w> Remote control Winch. <e> 10 last Events. <0> 0uit.</e></w></pre>	Log
Henu APB5:14000023	<u> P</u> rint
<t> Remote control SD204/208.</t>	😂 Call
<w> Remote control Winch. <e> 10 last Events.</e></w>	
<q> Quit.</q>	🖄 <u>R</u> eceive
Transparent GPS:	
<ctrl+t> To quit transparent mode</ctrl+t>	Save text
M= Menu	
R= Reset	
E= Stop	
	+ 100 169 1 0
	 Disabled

After activate GPS(Garmin gps 17x) direct communication can be done via menu displayed by program.

Debug:

When doing a test on land before deployment or when profile in when deployed. Is possible to watch the ongoing process.

Make sure that WIFI connection is establish to the APB5. Open SD200w - via Instrument icon - > Setup. Select TCP/IP and type 192.168.1.1:10001. < ok >

Wait for green led in lower left corner. If debug is not active none info is printed. Type $\langle D \rangle$ for activate debug mode. $\langle D \rangle$ toggles debug mode, press more than once will turn off and on debugmode.

About:

Watchdog is being printed every 30 sec. (is not need to understand what is being printed)

When a profile is set to run, debug mode will say profiling ON: It will set some settings to the winch and after this is OK. It will open communication with instrument vi Radio. With sending <I>. Menu off instrument is being displayed when communication is up. Last command to instrument will be RUN.

Then winch communication begins. Every 3 sec winch will be pulled. Some info will be displayed- Look at E0000 and D0000 telling the turns off winch.

When back up last status will be PARK. After this instrument will be polled and data dumped into the controller. When finish, controller will be Restart. And FTP files will be sent after network is establish (after 90 sec mobile network and 360 sec satellite network)

Turn of Debug with <D>. Close window.

Command: ESC = reset controller.

Warning it is possible to delete the program in this mode by typing special commands. So playing with this is not recommended. If you get delete Main Y/N : type N for No.

If you in some reason is able to delete the program, do not turn of the buoys power. Leave it on and contact supplier. It possible to download new software as long as it has power and WIFI is up running.



41 SAIV A/S Environmental Sensors & Systems

Load Default values/Reset:

To load default values. Turn of APB5 main switch (box next to router box) Remove the DIV antenna to the right (Use an 8 mm wrench tool) Open hatch on the black mini box at the right corner inside the router box. Make sure that the APB5 has been power off for at least 2 min. Hold down the reset button under the hatch while turn the power on. After about **10 sec** release the reset button. All default will be loaded, APB5 will start in service/maintenance mode, Network is set to online (LTE/WIFI), winch will be available via remote. Time zone will be 2 hours. (Norwegian time) change in apdnp.htm FTP servers will be station.saivas.net



42

In version 5. Antennas is moved inside the router box, if network has good coverage at the area where the APB5 is placed, is recommended to use the internal antennas. External antenna is mounted on the all APB5, but user only physical connect this if network is poor. Use an 8 mm tool to disconnect the internal antenna and replace it with the cable. Use the ANT (to the left)

By having the antennas inside will protect the router form lightning and Suns "ESD" Electrostatic discharge.

LR77-v2 and SIM card

Physical change of SIM card

Open gray box to the left of the on/off box. Use a small screwdriver to press on the small eject button next to the SIM slot 1.



Change APN access point name in the LR77-v2

To access LR77-v2 is best done by WIFI. After activate APB5 and connected to APB5 WIFI network. Type address 192.168.1.1 in address line of a browser.

Username : root Password : apb5

day x	Chicago Chicago California Chicago	
C 0 192.168.1.1/index.cpi		\$
router LR77 v2	2	
	General Status	
	Hobile Connection	
TILAN STR (IP A) Can Rx 0 Rk Ut Uttil + Mo	Cort 1 0/4ary Orsy 108.4 (2).242 ets 1.2.4 (0) ets 1.3.4 (0)	
6	Primary LAN	
aration IP At Arat	adress 1 102,368.3.3 / 255.255.255.0 Adress 1 202-06.141.06.75347 41 11.5 M 104 11.5 M 1	
WAN - Ho	ve bitomation «	
P Routes Routes Routes Routes Routes Routes Routes Routes Routes	WPY # 190,345,11/255,355,055.0 Address : 190,045,11/255,355,055.0 Address : 100,061,11/05(55,47) 4 : 100,061,100,052,000 4 : 1796 4 : 1796	
N	Peripheral Ports	
Exper Exper Binar Binar	nd 567 APC 1 - 16 - 220 568 APC 1 - 1 - 16/1 - 72 Daysk - 1 - 06 7 - 504 - 1 - 067	
ion Port 1	System Information	
alon Port 2 Firm ort Serial atic Update Teeps sization Upta totalas > Up	war 'wroin (1,1,1 (2017-9-27)) 4 Jones - 1912- 3 William - 1913- 3 William - 1917- 3 William - 1917- 4 March - 1917- 4 March - 1917- 4 March - 1917- 5	
istration		
e Profile Prassword al Time Clock 5 Stevice Center StH Card k SIH Card 16 Configuration - Configuration - Configuration		
t Firmware C		

Click on Mobile Wan link under configuration menu:

Constraint Constraint <th>Bouter X</th> <th></th> <th>1995</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>-</th>	Bouter X		1995					-
View of the second s	\rightarrow C (i) 192.168.1.1/mwan1.c	ai					4	7
For couter LRP.7 v2 Image pression Image pression		-5.					~	
tux Ist Mobile WAW Configuration teral Sit Create connection to mobile network Sat SIM card 2nd SIM card F APN * Vpn netcom no internet public Username * Immed * Immed * Immed * Variation PAP or CHAP PAP or CHAP PAP or CHAP Part of ChaP or CHAP PAP or CHAP PAP or CHAP PAP or CHAP Planders * Immed * Immed * Immed * Authentication PAP or CHAP PAP or CHAP PAP Planders * Immed * Immed * Immed * Ifguration Operator * automatic selection * Person * PIN * Immed * Immed * Immed * VAN Network Iffur isso Iffur isso Immed * VAN Network Isso Iffur isso Immed * Immed * VAN Network Isso Isso Immed * Immed * Immed * VAN Network Isso Isso Isso Imme	E router LR77 \	12						
read # Create connection to mobile network 15 Gan 15 Sin 15 Gan N * 15 Gan Username * 15 Gan Hartentication 15 Gan Passorot * 15 Gan IP Address * 16 WAN Network type 17 Address * Image: Sint Control 18 WAN Network Type 18 WAN Network Type 19 Pone Number ** Image: Sint Control 10 Pone Number ** Image: Sint Control 11 Not Not Type automatic selection * 11 Not Not Type Image: Sint Control 11 Not Not Not Type Image: Sint Control 11 Not	his				1st Mobile	w	AN Configuration	
radius But Pract connection to monoie herework Scan AN * Scan AN * work Password * Password * Passwo			and the sector of					
San APN * 'ypineticom no San Username *	erai	Create connection to	1st SIM card		2nd SIM card			
San protektion Username *	AP	N *	vpn.netcom.no		internet.public			
Grif Conception of the second	Scan	ername *						
Authentication PAP or CHAP • PAP or CHAP • PAddess * Defaults and the subset * Part of the subset * Part o	ork Pa	ssword *						
NS IP Address * puration Operator * Operator * Image:	Au	thentication	PAP or CHAP	•	PAP or CHAP	٠		
min Log Phone Number * guration Operator * Operator *	IP	Address *						
ignoration Operator * Per WAN Network Type Per WAN Network Type Particle NEW Ork Type NU 1500 Network Type Jutomatic selection • PIN * Image: Selection • Nu 1500 Nu pRoutes DNS Settings reloates DNS Settings DNS P Address DNS Connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation • Check Connection enable diabled • Ping IP Address 85200 249.146 Ping IP Address 85200 249.146 Ping IP Address 85200 249.146 Ping Interval 000 Sec Enable traffic monitoring Data Limit MB Warning State 1 Notable % Accounting State not applicable • Notables Initial State not applicable • Notable Shit Card Initial State not applicable • Notable Shit Card Initial State not applicable • Bep Pofile Default SM Card Ist min <t< td=""><td>em Log Ph</td><td>one Number *</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	em Log Ph	one Number *						
Participation automatic selection • PIN * isubmatic selection • PIN * iso0 PIN * iso0 MRU 1500 Vip Rottes DNS Settings Potestings get from operator • Potestings get from operator Potestings get from operator • Potestings get from operator Potestings get from operator Potestings get from operator Potestings get from operator Potestings </td <td>iguration On</td> <td>erator *</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	iguration On	erator *						
PWAN PIN * MRU 1500 Np Routes DNS Settings gel from operator • gel from operator • DNS IP Address DNS IP Address all DNS IP Address VPN Check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) Check Connection enabled • disabled • Ping IP Address 85 200 249 146 Ping Interval 300 Bion Port 1 300 nsion Port 2 Data Limit Warning Threshold % Accounting State not applicable • Notal Limit State not applicable • Notal Limit State not applicable • BINO State not applicable • Default StM Card 1st Sep Pofile Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Switch to other SIM card is min Subsequent Timeout * Minical Timeout * Minical Timeout * Subsequent Timeout * Minical Timeout * Subsequent Timeout * Minical Timeout * Action Provide Context*	Ne	twork Type	automatic selection	•	automatic selection	۲		
le WAN MRU 1500 1500 bytes F HRU 1500 1500 bytes N Up Routes DNS Settings get from operator get from operator C Routes DNS IP Address Image: Control of the start of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) C/The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) Check Connection enabled VPN Check Connection enabled disabled Ping ID Address 85 200 249.146 Ping Interval 300 Inside Port 1 Data Limit Data Limit MB Port Warning Threshold Accounting Start 1 Instantion SiM Card BINO State not applicable Instantion Subch to default SIM Card SiM Starte not applicable SiM Card 1st Ge Profile Switch to default SIM card when connection fails Switch to default SIM card fielt returneout min Subsequent Timeout 60 min Subsequent Timeout 60 min Subsequent Timeout min Subsequent Timeout min	PI	N **						
e Mu 1500 1500 N UP Routes DNS Settings get from operator c Routes DNS JP Address rail (<i>The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation</i>) VPN Check Connection enabled visit Ping IP Address 85.200.249 146 Ping IP Address 85.200.249 146 Ping Interval 300 Sec Enable traffic monitoring Deta Limit MB Varing Threshold %6 Accounting Statt 1 Inistration Sith Card Roming State not applicable Inistration Suith to default SIM card Sege Profile rege Profile Reg Profile Rege Profile Restric Cock SMS Service Center dck SIM Card Ist SMS Service Center dck SIM Card <td>le WAN</td> <td>RU .</td> <td>1500</td> <td></td> <td>1500</td> <td></td> <td>bytes</td> <td></td>	le WAN	RU .	1500		1500		bytes	
N Intermediation Np Routes rail DNS Setings get from operator get from operator DNS IP Address DNS IP Address DNS IP Address VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled VNN Check Connection in enabled disabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Simplement Simplement in on applicable Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Simplement Simplement Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Image: Connection in enabled Simplement Simplement Image: Connection in enapplicable Image: Connection in e	C MT	1	1500		1500		bytes	
Up Routes c Routes all DNS Settings get from operator UNS IP Address DNS IP Address UNVN (The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) Check Connection Check Connection enabled Ping IP Address 85.200.249.146 Ping IP Address 85.200.249.146 Ping Interval 300 sec Enable traffic monitoring nsion Port 1 Data Limit Not Warning Threshold So Accounting Start Notal Six Accounting Start Inistration BINO State Sige Profile ere Possword Default SIM Card Six Service Center cks Six Service Center cks SIX Card Inite of the connection fails subc to default SIM card after timeout Six Service Center cks SIX Card Switch to other SIM card when connection fails subc to default SIM card after timeout Six Service Center cks SIX Card Fishe Service Endre Six Service Center cks SIX Card Fishe Subce Endre mode Six Service Center cks SIX Card Fishe Service Endre Six Service Center cks SIX Card Fishe Service Endre Six Configuration cre Configuration Fishe Service Endre	N	·					9769	_
CROUES DNS IP Address all (The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) Check Connection enabled Ping IP Address 85 200 249 146 Ping IP Address 85 200 249 146 Ping Interval 300 Insion Port 1 Data Limit Dort 2 Data Limit Port 3 Data Limit Modules SiM Card Initization SiM Card Sig e Profile Default SIM Card ge Profile Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Six SiM Card Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Six SiM Card Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Six SiM Card Fouries Configuration Accounting Stat Initial Timeout SiM Supequent Timeout * min SiM Supequent Timeout * min SiM Card Fouries Timeout * Subsequent Timeout * min Subsequent Timeout * min	up Routes DN	IS Settings	get from operator	۲	get from operator	۲		
an (The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) VPN (The feature of check connection to mobile network is necessary for uninterrupted operation) Check Connection enabled Ping IP Address §5 200 249 146 Ping Interval 300 Station Port 1 300 Ision Port 2 Data Limit Port 2 Data Limit Warning Threshold % Accounting Start 1 Ision Port 2 Accounting Start Modules Not applicable not applicable Initiation State not applicable not applicable ge Profile Default SIM Card 1st ge Porfile Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Switch to default SIM card after timeout SWS Switch to other SIM card when connection fails Switch to default SIM card after timeout min Syns Subsequent Timeout * min min Additive Constant * min	DN DN	IS IP Address						
VPN Check connection is indicate remotes is research for uninter type desaultify ves Ping IP Address ees ison Port 1 nsion Port 2 Data Limit Varing Threshold MB Warning Threshold % Accounting Statt 1 mization SIM Card espension not applicable mistration SIM Card ge Position Ist State est Time Code SWK to the SIM Card SWS Sup Configuration Gold SVS Subte to there Connection fails SVS Subsequent Timeout Subsequent Timeout Gold additive Constant * min additive Constant * min		he feature of check co	opaction to mobile notw	ork l	is pacessory for unintern	unte	od operation)	1
ces Ping IP Address ping IP Address 85 200 249 146 Ping Interval 300 sison Port 1 300 bison Port 2 Data Limit Port Warning Threshold st Accounting Start Modules SIM Card nistration SIM Card ge Profile Ge Profile ge Profile Default SIM Card ge Profile Switch to other SIM card when connection fails k SIM Card Initial Timeout SSMS Switch to other SIM card diret imeout Initial Timeout 60 min Subsequent Timeout * SMS Subsequent Timeout * applicable Profile File Pasavord Initial SIM card File SWIC to other SIM card when connection fails Subsequent Timeout * min Subsequent Timeout * min Address Pile min	VPN	eck Connection	enabled	•	disabled	•		
Pring in National Construction of the sec Ision Port 1 Ision Port 2 Orbit Sanadic Update Initiation of the sec Modules Notation	Pin	n IP Address	85 200 249 146		Giadoleo			
ces Implantation Course Sec ision Port 1 Implantation Implantation MB Variant 1 Implantation MB Static Update Accounting Start Implantation mization StM Card enabled MB Modules StM Card enabled Modules nistration StM Card enabled Instable Instable pe Profile Default StM Card Ist Instable Instable pe Profile Default StM Card Ist Instable Instable ge Profile Switch to other StM card when connection fails Switch to default StM card when connection fails Switch to default StM card when connection fails SWS Subsequent Timeout 60 min Subsequent Timeout min Addive constant * min min Addive constant * min	Pin	ng Interval	300				ser.	
ces Image: Enable traffic monitoring sion Port 1 Data Limit halon Port 2 Data Limit Varning Threshold Image: Port 1 sis Accounting Start mizotion SIM Card Roaming State not applicable mizotion SIM Card ge Profile Port 1 ge Profile Default SIM Card ge Profile Default SIM Card ge Profile Default SIM Card ge Profile SiM Card ge Profile SiM Ch to other SIM card when connection fails Switch to other SIM card start "meout" Additive Constant " Additive Constant * min Additive Constant *					IL		Joce	_
nsion Port 1 Data Limit MB Port Warning Threshold % Accounting Start 1 % matic Update SIM Card enabled % mistation SIM Card enabled mistation SIM Card enabled BiNo State not applicable porticitation BiNo State not applicable BiNo State not applicable ge Profile Default SIM Card 1st ge Profile Switch to other SIM card when connection fails SMS Switch to other SIM card when connection fails switch to default SIM card after timeout SMS Subsequent Timeout Min Subsequent Timeout min Active Configuration Additive Constant * Active Configuration Additive constant *	ces	Enable traffic monitor	ing					
Isadi Port 2 Varning Threshold Image: Constant and Constant a	nsion Port 1	ta Limit					MB	Ī
ts Accounting State 1 matic Update Accounting State 1 smization SIM Card enabled Initial State Modules Not applicable Inot applicable Data Limit State not applicable Inot applicable Inot applicable ge Profile Default SIM Card 1st ge Profile Default SIM Card fist Initial State istal Time Clock Switch to other SIM card when connection fails SWS Switch to other SIM card after timeout SWS Subsequent Timeout 60 up Configuration Additive Constant * Additive Constant * min	Port Wa	arning Threshold					96	
Andic Update Accounty Survey smization SIM Card enabled • Simization SIM Card enabled • Modules Dat Limit State not applicable • Data Limit State not applicable • not applicable • ge Profile Default SIM Card 1st • ge Profile Initial State online • ge Profile Sith Card Initial State Sith Card Initial State online • Sith Card Sith to other SIM card when connection fails Switch to default SIM card ther timeout switch to default SIM card ther timeout Syst Subsequent Timeout * min Additive Constant * min Additive Constant * min Madeu Ensblat BRDE bride mode	ts Ac	counting Start	1] ~~	
SIM Card enabled dsabled dsabled mot applicable not applicable state not applicable not applicable not applicable state not applicable not applicable not applicable state not applicable not applicable<td>matic Update</td><td>counting start</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td>	matic Update	counting start						
Modules Roaming State Ind applicable Ind applicable intstration Data Limit State Ind applicable Inot applicable s Default SIM Card 1st ge Profile Inite Clock SMS Service Center Switch to other SIM card when connection fails ock SIM Card Initial Timeout Initial Timeout 60 wince Configuration Additive Constant Additive Constant min	omization SI	M Card	enabled	۲	disabled	۲		
Data Limit State not applicable Inot applicable ge Profile not applicable Inot applicable ge Profile Initial State Ist switch to other SIM card when connection fails Ist ck SIM Card Switch to other SIM card when connection fails ck SIM Card Initial Timeout Ist min subsequent Timeout * min Additive Constant * min Additive Constant * min	Ro	aming State	not applicable	۲	not applicable	۲		
BINO State not applicable Inot applicable ge Pofault SIM Card 1st ge Password Initial State online Initial State online MS Service Center Switch to other SIM card when connection fails ck SIM Card Initial Timeout ock SIM Card Initial Timeout syst5 Subsequent Timeout * ore Configuration Additive Constant * de Firmware Enable DBOR bridge mode	Da	ta Limit State	not applicable	۲	not applicable	۲		
be per Politie Default SIM Card 1st ge Password Initial State online eat Time Clock Switch to other SIM card when connection fails ik SIM Card Switch to other SIM card after timeout ik SIM Card Initial Timeout is SVIS Subsequent Timeout * ing Configuration Additive Constant * ive Configuration Eashle DPDPC hirdes mode	BI	N0 State	not applicable	۲	not applicable	٠		
ge Profile Default construction ge Password Initial State call Time Clock Switch to other SIM card when connection fails MS Service Center Switch to other SIM card after timeout k SIM Card Initial Timeout SVS Subsequent Timeout up Configuration Additive Constant * additive Constant * min	De	fault SIM Card	1st	•	1			Ī
Addition of the second se	ge Profile de Password	tial State	online	•				
MS Service Center Switch to other SIM card when connection fails k SIM Card Switch to default SIM card after timeout K SIM Card Initial Timeout SMS Subsequent Timeout * up Configuration Additive Constant * te Firmware Enable DBDrc hrides mode	eal Time Clock			_		_		
ks SIM Card Sim Card one out off data the unreout sk SIM Card Initial Timeout SMS Subsequent Timeout * up Configuration Additive Constant * rer Configuration Fashle DBDoc hvides mode	MS Service Center	Switch to other SIM of Switch to default SIM	ard when connection fail	s				
SMS Subsequent Timeout 0u Time byp Configuration Additive Constant * min certain the firmware Image the problem of the proble	ck SIM Card	tial Timoout	card arter timeout		min			
up Configuration Subsequent Introduct min additive Constant min Additive Constant min E Firmware Subsequent E bidne mode	I SMS	Gar Hilleout	00					
ate Firmware Enable 00005 bridge mode	sup Configuration	division of the second s						
ate Firmware Enable PDDoE bridge mode	ore Configuration Ad	uitive Constant *						
and the state of t	ate Firmware	Enable PPPoE bridge	mode					
ut Can be blank	out * c	can be blank						

Change APN: Access point name to the name your SIM provider use, 1 st sim is default.

Get SMS when APB5 turns online:

Click on Services than SMS, select send SMS on connect to mobile network Add your phone number leave ID as same as serial number of APB5 Enable remote control via SMS, enable possibility to send "reboot" and some other commands via SMS from your phone. To get more info about LR77-v2 see manual. http://station.saivas.net/manuals/LR77_v2_Usersguide.pdf

		📤 🗕 🗖 🗾 🗡
Router ×		
← → C ① Ikke sikker	192.168.1.1/sms.cgi	☆ :
I TE router I R	77 v2	
Life router Elt		
Status	SMS Configuration	
Status		
General	Send SMS on power up	
Mobile WAN	Send SMS on connect to mobile network	
WiFi	Send SMS on disconnect from mobile network	
WiFi Scan	Send SMS when datalimit is exceeded	
Network	Send SMS when binary input on I/O port (BIN0) is active	
DHCP	Send SMS, when binary input an expansion port 1 (BIN1-BIN4) is artive	
IPsec	Add importance to SKC	
DynDNS		
System Log	Phone Number 1 97086846	
Configuration	Phone Number 2	
	Phone Number 3	
LAN	Light D = 17000yy	
VRRP		
Mobile WAN	BIN0 - SMS *	
PPPOE	BIN1 - SMS *	
WIFI	BIN2 - SMS "	
WLAN Backup Boutes	DIN2 CMC *	
Static Poutos		
Firewall	BIN4 - SMS *	
NAT	@ Enable remete centrel via SMS	
OpenVPN	Enable femilie control via SHS	
IPsec	Phone Number 1 97086846	
GRE	Phone Number 2	
L2TP	Phone Number 3	
РРТР		
Services	Enable AT-SMS protocol on expansion port 1	
DynDNS	Baudrate 9600 T	
• FTP		
• HTTP	Enable AT-SMS protocol on expansion port 2	
• NTP	Baudrate 9600 T	
• SNMP		
• SMTP	Enable AT-SMS protocol over TCP	
• SMS	TCP Port 10002	
• SSH	* can be blank	
Ferrer Expansion Port 1		
Expansion Port 2	Apply	
USB Port		
Scripts		
Automatic Update		
Customization		
User Modules		
Administration		
Administration		
Users	1	
Change Profile	1	
Change Password	1	
Set Real Time Clock	1	
Set SMS Service Center	1	.

45

Graphical display of data

Station.saivas.net/Serialnumber

Enter the above address in your browser plus the serial number of the APB5 (8 digits). The last profile data is shown by graph or text.



IMR welfare meter (Institute of Marine Research, Bergen, Norway)

(http://www.imr.no/welfaremeter/index.htm)

The system collects "dump.htm" in to a local database it can be displayed as shown in Fig Appendix 4.1. The Welfare-meter is used by Institute of Marine Research, Bergen,



Fig Appendix . Example of graphical display of profile data using the IMR Welfaremeter.

The Welfaremeter is an expert system for assessing fish welfare in aquaculture. The system consists of a buoy (APB5) with profiling probe (CTD,SD204/SD208) placed in the centre of a sea cage, a reference probe (CTD, SD204/SD208) placed at a distance from the fish farm, a database, an expert software program and an internet webpage. The profiling probe measures temperature, oxygen, salinity, fluorescence and turbidity for each half meter downwards in the cage. The buoy's control unit determines how often the probe profiles the water column and present data on an internal webpage. The Welfaremeter polls these data via the mobile phone network (GPRS) and stores it in the database. The data are then analysed by the expert software which gives an evaluation of the environmental conditions in the cage as either very good, fair or potentially harmful for the fish. The software also calculates a welfare index from 0 (terrible welfare) to 100 (excellent welfare). This index is based on modelling of metabolic scope (the salmon's capacity to extract oxygen beyond its basic needs from the water under the current environmental conditions) and factorial scope which reflects the salmon's robustness for stress and environmental perturbations under the current environmental conditions). The results are shown on the internet webpage (requires login).

47

Leaflet: quick Start up:

1.

Unpack the APB5. Place it on two (2) tables (approx 1 meter over ground) or similar that make it possible to access the inside of the buoy. (Make sure that the table or other support is stable and strong.) Weight off APB5 is about 200Kg.

2.

Turn on the power button inside the buoy.

3.

Insert batteries in the Remote control. Hold middle button (red light turns on) 30-40 seconds green led turns on when the APB5 wakes up. Time has to be between 0900-1600 Norwegian time. (This can be change if your location is different.) If you not get green light try again and hold another 30-40 seconds.

4.

When getting green light on the remote let go of the middle button(PS. If you type middle button again on the remote, it will light up red light first, this does not mean that its offline, it just that the remote only operate on its own. You will see green light again when APB5 respond again). After 30 second you can try to use up down buttons to send the END STOP magnet unit out of the buoy. You will need to help it since the load is low. Beware that the APB5 is now only active until next full hour. Check your watch.

5.

Fasten CTD with the shackle and a secure it with a strips. Use remote up button to drag it in the buoy.

6.

Connect you laptop to APB5 WIFI. (ID = SERIAL NUMMER).

7.

Open a browser (google Chrom, safari, Opera .. etc) type 192.168.1.2 into the address field (remove everything else) the index page of APB5 should now be displayed.

8.

If SIM card not inserted you can do this now, it also possible to go to 9 without SIM card inserted, but then files will not be send to external FTP server.

9.

Make sure to have the APB5 in a level position and about 1 meter above the ground.

Type /apr after 192.168.1.2 = 192.168.1.2/apr

Aprun.htm page appears. Check voltage. (displayed in Blue color together with Temperature)

Do a land-test.

48

Sett single run, depth 3 meter ,always Onland test = ON. Than Press RUN button. Wait for the browser to return confirmation.

Since you have now chosen always on than the buoy will stay online as long as the voltage is a bow 15 volt.

10.

First thing that will happened is that the instrument will be drag into and up in the buoy. Then APB5 will try to wake the instrument. You can see for led light on the CTD to light up. When finish communicates with CTD it will lower the instrument to climate zone (30 cm under lowest ring of APB5).

Hold your hand on the CTD to help and prevent it to drop into the ground. It takes about 30 seconds in climate zone. Help the CTD out and back in to climate zone. After this it will be drag back up into the buoy. Data will now be collected from the CTD and be displayed if you click data on the index page 192.168.1.2 Data will also be available on FTP top server (ftp://station.saivas.net) and internal USB (ftp://192.168.1.1) see section FTP.

1.

Problems:

Download SD200w from <u>http://station.saivas.net/filesToPage/sd200w.zip</u> Check communication with all connected unit.

2.

Connect to APB5 WIFI. Drag sd200w.exe file to your desktop, windows based program.

3.

Open program and press instrument icon and then setup. Chose TCP/IP and address 192.168.1.2:10000 (default) click OK. And then type any key after green dot in front of address 192.168.1.2 in lover right corner. Menu of APB5 will now appear.

Look at Event log. <E>

If CTD problem, try direct communication <T>.

If none respond from CTD. Type <T> again follow by ESC. Now try to trigger the CTD with Mag-key. If led light up but none text appears on the screen. Then radio might be deactivated. Connect CTD to PC by cable and activate radio again via menu <J>. Also go to hidden menu <W> and activate

buoy mode.

Disconnect cable and try again.

If Winch problem, try direct communication <W>

• • • • •

Contact supplier.

Power problems

1.

Not get green light on remote. Check voltage in the on/off box. Contact supplier.